REGULAR MEETING

FEBRUARY 14, 2007

The Regular Meeting of the Council of the County of Kaua‘l was called to
order by the Council Chair at the Council Chambers, Historic County
Building, 4396 Rice Street, Room 201, Lihu‘e, Kaua‘i, on Wednesday, February 14,
2007 at 9:14 a.m., after which the following members answered the call of the roll:

Honorable Tim Bynum

Honorable Jay Furfaro

Honorable Shaylene Iseri-Carvalho
Honorable Ronald Kouchi

Honorable Mel Rapozo

Honorable JoAnn A. Yukimura

Honorable Bill “Kaipo” Asing, Council Chair

PETER NAKAMURA, COUNTY CLERK: First item is approval of the
agenda, and Council Chair if I may, I just want to request that the Council amend
its agenda on page seven (7) of the Council’s agenda, under Committee Reports, I
mistakenly listed a committee from the previous term, so instead of the Community
Assistance/Intergovernmental Relations Committee Reports, that should read
Parks & Recreation Committee Reports. And then also on page nine (9) of the
Council’s agenda, under Bills for Second Reading, on Bills 2206 and 2207, I again
mistakenly referenced this as being recommended for approval by the Community
Assistance/Intergovernmental Relations Committee, and it should have been Parks
& Recreation Committee. My apologies Council Chair.

Chair Asing: Thank you. With that, if there are no objections, the
agenda is amended as stated. With that, can we have the first item please?

APPROVAL OF AGENDA:

Mr. Rapozo moved for approval of the agenda as amended and circulated, seconded
by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho, and unanimously carried.

MINUTES of the following meetings of the Council:

Regular Meeting of January 10, 2007

Special Council Meeting of February 6, 2007

Public Hearing of January 24, 2007, re: Bill No. 2204

Public Hearing of January 31, 2007, re: Bills Nos. 2206 and 2207

Mr. Furfaro moved for approval of the minutes as circulated, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.
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COMMUNICATIONS:
There being no objections C 2007-113 was taken out of order.

C 2007-113 Communication (01/26/2007) from the Chief, Building Division,
Department of Public Works, transmitting for Council information, the monthly
Building Permit Information for November and December 2006:

Chair Asing: Thank you. With that, can you read that item please?

C 2007-113 Communication (01/26/2007) from the Chief, Building Division,
Department of Public Works, transmitting for Council information, the monthly
Building Permit Information for November and December 2006:

Chair Asing: Thank you. Can we have...Erik are you coming up?
Thank you, before we start, Councilmembers, the reason for my putting this on the
agenda is that they have not completed their work in its entirety, but it is a report
on what they've done and what they plan to do. And therefore, the reason for my
putting it on the agenda is to keep the Council informed as to what in fact they are
doing. So that’s the reason for the item being on the agenda. With that, Erik?

There being no objections, the rules were suspended.
ERIK KNUTZEN, IT MANAGER: Happy Valentine’s Day.
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Thank you Erik.

Mr. Knutzen: To give you a status report, the background as we know,
that over the number of years behind us, I know there has been mention of 15 years
back, but I know that during 2006, that the reports that are doing permit tracking
of time it takes per agency have not given correct data, that’s the fact. The data
that was given to you and to others and we’ve been working ourselves with has not
been accurate, so on December the 18t IT was given the responsibility to take on
the challenge of solving this problem. On January 5 we concluded our analysis and
we have a report with findings and recommendations which we provided to the
Directors of the various agencies that are working with permitting. And what we
found is that a need to correct a number of things. We developed a 24 point action
plan, which I'm showing here, of which there’s 20 which we’ve already completed.
And I know a lot of this is detail which you probably aren’t interested in, but to
summarize for you, for your benefit where we’re at, what we just completed...there’s
two (2) significant items on the action plan that we’ve done here.

One (1) is, we've agreed to a standard permit input procedure, and it looks
like this. It’s all...it’s very easy to follow, it’s highlighted...the things to remember.
Each of the agencies inputting permits regarding how long it takes, the input time,
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and the date of completion follow this, and this is all at their work stations. We're
actually laminating this, we’re going to hang it up so that over time it isn’t lost.
Right now it’s very actively used. If you go out to the different agencies you’ll find
this, but over time it will be lost, that’s my experience, our experience. So, in the
coming week we’ll be laminating, you'll see them hung up at the different work
stations for the agencies that are inputting permit information. The agreement to
work in this area, the standard procedure took oh, a number of weeks. There was
all kinds of ideas, and there were significant differences between agencies as to how
they were inputting. It wasn’t consistent, now it is. In February we started
that...actually in the end of January, the last few days of January were included in
this month’s tracking. And for the month of February, just prior to February
actually, in January, we conducted two (2), actually three (3) two (2) hour sessions
where they were allowed to come in...allowed...they were asked, required to come in
and be trained for two (2) hours, everyone that inputs. We were supported very well
by the Administration. All the agency heads sent all of their people, 33 were asked
to attend, one (1) was out sick, 32 attended, so we were really, really happy. We've
never seen that degree of attendance. Usually there’s more out sick or have
different, other meetings or challenges, but, so we’ve got nearly 100% participation
in the training and the one (1) out sick we have individual training with. And so
the end result is that everyone who input permit info in the system is following this
standard procedure and is trained in it.

That being said, the challenges we have ahead of us are that it’s new. Some
of them did not input data in this way in the past, and you know how we’re...what
is it called, we'’re creatures of habit, that it’s a change, and we’re following up every
week. There’s three (3) of us that are going out to the agencies which are affected,
and we’re working with them to correct ongoing issues we see in the system where
they are not...they are going back to their old habits and inputting incorrectly. We
can see that. We know what kind of issues we’re looking for. We know that the
report in March will be accurate, it won’t be perfect. It will be very close. We know
the report for April, based on the March data will be even better. So, as you know
introducing a standard procedure and getting 33 individuals to follow it is a
challenge we’re taking on and will not be perfect in the beginning, it will
continuously improve. So that’s where we’re at. The most significant open action
items include ongoing visits to each of the agencies by three (3) of us during the
month of February. We have in...for open permits which are in the system, we’re
going back and changing some of the codes, correcting codes. For 2006 and 2007,
open permits that data clean up will be completed in March, and the March report
will be validated, which is our other action item to do in March is to make sure that
the report in March which is coming out, reflecting February data is correct and
that’s going to be done. We've collect1vely worked on this, and will be producing
that report mid March?

DOUG HAIGH, BUILDING DIVISION, DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC
WORKS: Early March.
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Mr. Knutzen: Early March. Thank you.

Chair Asing: Okay, questions Councilmembers? Councilmember
Furfaro?

Mr. Furfaro: Hi Erik and Doug, thank you for the work, but bottomline

here, it was never a software problem, it’s a training problem. So for eight (8)
months we were told it was a software problem. You've been able to confirm that it
really was a training problem to make the software work, and I appreciate the
initiative you have in the training period here, and I think we all understand
that...now that we know what needs to be done, it’ll take time to get all the bugs
out. Thank you very much.

Mr. Haigh: I would just like to clarify a little bit on that. These new
procedures are completely different than the procedures we’re using before, so while
the core software system is working, it’s that user interface on how to use that
software was the problem. The training we did when we implemented the software
changes that occurred last year, there was a fundamental flaw in our training, so it
was...

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you for repeating what I just said. It was a
fundamental flaw in our training.

Mr. Haigh: Yea.

Mr. Furfaro: That’s basically what it is. We’ve identified it now, and

you know we really know what we need to do, and I really appreciate you gentlemen
paying this kind of energy to making sure when we make these kinds of
investments in software and computers for the purpose of you know getting
ourselves good information, so that when we make decisions, unless we invest in the
training when we make changes, the reality is you know garbage in garbage out.
So...and that’s what we have and I really appreciate the work you've done, and you
know I'd continue, periodically you know if you need to put some non-productive
time on the side to just spot check the training, I think that would be a good idea. I
mean 64 hours of two (2) hours each, 32 people, 64 hours of non-productive training
is going to go a long way for us in having good information. So, thank you again.

. Chair Asing: Councilmembers, any other questions? Yes,
Councilmember Kouchi?

Mr. Kouchi: I guess the question I would ask Erik is if the employees
who are trained were...was there an explanation given as to the importance of the
job that they are performing?
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Mr. Knutzen: Definitely. In this training, and in the beginning of each
of the sessions, I personally mentioned the gravity of this, and how it affects the
information that not only you're seeing, but how it will help us improve the permit
system as a whole. Because it...we know that this tool, this report which is coming
out reflects how quickly permits are passing through each of the respective
agencies, which will help us in...with that data, with that knowledge understand
where our bottlenecks are to make us provide better service to our people.

Mr. Kouchi: Well I think the other part of it that we had discussed
back in December is that this is a real critical tool, or could be a very useful tool for
the Finance Department in budget forecasting. If we have better interface in
picking up the permits for real property, then they’d have a better ability to pick up
improvements, and make sure that we’re getting all assets that should be assessed
and taxed, which generates the revenue for the operation of the County. Certainly,
these are collective bargaining employees, and so left handedly, obviously they are
helping the County be in a better financial position, which in term helps better
secure their own jobs. And you know I just see it as that as long as they realize that
the reason all of this is being done is because they are performing a critical task.
The information they are providing is useful to not just the Council, but multiple
agencies, and it’s really making a difference that you know when you go to work you
feel good knowing that you know, hey I’'m a difference maker at work. You know
and what I’'m doing is having a positive effect, instead of just punching the thing
and whether it’s right, wrong, you know. And so I'm glad that that was passed on,
and I just wanted to reiterate here to all of the employees that you know these
reports are going to be really useful for multiple agencies, and I appreciate that
we're getting them right.

Chair Asing: Councilmember Rapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you. Erik, in the response number one (1) on page
two (2), there is no software (inaudible) problem with the basic software, problems
have been with the user software interface. What is the user software interface? Is
that a component?

Mr. Knutsen: Which um...may I ask...what are we referring to?

Mr. Rapozo: Page two (2) of your...I guess it’s Doug’s response, I'm
sorry.

Mr. Knutzen: This is from Doug, which item...

Mr. Haigh: Okay, may be best if I respond to that.

Mr. Rapozo: Yea, what is the user software interface?
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Mr. Haigh: It’s how...our instructions in how we input and what
codes we use when we'’re inputting.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, so it’s the same as the user inputting, because...
Mr. Haigh: Yea, and then it’s also...
Mr. Rapozo: With the user software interface and user inputting,

that’s the same?

Mr. Haigh: And then also we were pulling out data using a certain
report function to pull out data from the data base, and that’s kind of the user
interface...

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, let’s...

Mr. Haigh: And when that report was not going to the right fields, we
weren’t getting the right information.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, so it is...it’s a user, not a computer at all...is the
interface is actually the...the interface between the human and the machine.

Mr. Haigh: And then you have it...see, it gets a little bit complicated,
because when you are pulling reports out of the data base, you have kind of like a
software list of commands that pull those reports, and that’s kind of the user
interface. And so it’s not strictly...we computerize...we automate that report, but
when that report is not pulling out from the right places, then we get incorrect
results, and that was one (1) of the problems we had.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay. So what was the major difference in training
between you know, the last time and this time?

Mr. Haigh: What we discovered, and this was really the joint effort
with IT, the software engineer, and key members of my staff reviewing what was
going on. We discovered that the commands that we trained everybody to use
weren’t giving the results that would support the report. And it turned out there
was a fundamental miscommunication in which commands...to use a year ago, and
so we were using certain commands that weren’t succeeding in giving us the results
to be able to print out the report. And basically the IT engineer, the HTE engineer,
the software engineer who got into this gave us a whole new methodology in order
to input to get the reports that would allow us to document review times. And so
this new training was a fundamental change for our users. Not only are we using
different commands, but we’re adding a whole...several whole new steps in the
inputting process to achieve the results. And so that’s been a real challenge and
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now we're also going back and you know trying to correct past inputs, so at least we
can try to have the best data we can.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, I guess it’s..I'm getting a hard time
understanding, and I appreciate what you folks have done, but let’s say the time in
a department was 30 days, and just use this...I'm just pulling that number out of
the sky. Now when the person punched in 30 days before this recent training, what
happened? Did the...(inaudible) now when they punch in 30 days it’s accurate,
whereas eight (8) months ago it wasn’t...what was the fundamental change, being
that the delay was 30 days, or was the data being manipulated or misentered?

Mr. Knutzen: It’s a code, the code...there’s different codes you put in,
and many of the agencies were using a code that wasn’t the one (1) we agreed to use
here now. I'll use the term APP, as approved, that was a code that was being used,
we’re now moving consistently across all agencies, we're using the code C&P, and
the difference is quite significant in the system. And there was a
miscommunication I guess when...between the agencies as well as HTE, when they
were here reviewing how to do this, as to what code should be used and how it
should be input. And we didn’t really get to the root cause until we did this review
and agreed on two (2) things. One (1) is how this to input this data, and the other is
what report we want out reflecting the data that was input. So those two (2)
significant things...we went all the way down to exactly what’s happening, who is
doing what, what codes are being used and when, and mapped it all out and it
resulted in this standard which is different, and Doug is totally correct that it is
very different than what we’ve been doing for not only the last year, but many years
back.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, thank you.

Chair Asing: Any other questions Councilmembers? Anybody else?
Shay?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:I guess Erik, I guess my question would be when were you
involved in this?

Mr. Knutzen: We were asked to do the analysis on December 18 in a
meeting with Donald Fujimoto.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, and I guess you know I appreciate again, you know
the work that you guys have done, but really it was a Council driven initiative. I
mean we had been receiving report after report after report blaming...adopting new
data input processes, and apparently that new data input process had not even been
taking place if you hadn’t been involved until December 18.
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Mr. Knutzen: Well to be honest, we...peripherally, we’ve been always
involved, IT, not only during the years that I've been working with Doug, but even
before that time, IT over the last 15 years has been involved and supporting the
agencies, and so it’s really a collective responsibility that it wasn’t done correctly,
including IT.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay, 'so...v(rell I just wanted to know from March when
we were receiving the reports, and the letters kept coming in saying that you have
adopted new data input processes. What were those new data input processes that
were adopted in March, that were adopted in April, that were adopted in May, that
were adopted in June, that were adopted in July, that were adopted in August, that
were adopted in September, and adopted in October, and were adopted in
November? Were there all...each time, was there a new data input process that
was being implemented? '

Mr. Knutzen: Well you know...I'll defer here to Doug in a moment, but
as I understand it, over those months I know that Doug met with me and a number
of times during that time as well, and if not me, at least one (1) or two (2) other
members of IT have been involved. And they were working, you were working on
the report side, and you were also giving information best you could to the other
agencies, though, remember we have to respect that Doug is a part of one (1) of the
agencies, and doesn’t have that...not only responsibility but authority with the
other agencies to direct them. And as I understand it, you did your best to
standardize those procedures, and I'll defer now to you and I know that you actively
worked on a report with us to try and pull out the correct data, and we didn’t...we
weren’t able to really get into the depths of what we did now, in all due respect to
Doug.

Mr. Kouchi: Well before...you know he gets there though, the fact of
the matter is that during the discussion in December, that was pointed out to us by
Mr. Fujimoto. And it was at that point that we said is someone running the County
on the other side who has that authority, and should not that person instruct each
department to comply, which then led to the December 18 meeting.

Mr. Knutzen: Correct.

Mr. Kouchi: And so instead of having the same letter from March
through November, a letter should have come back that in my area this is what I
have done, and we’re unable to comply with the task, because we’re not able to get
this other information from whatever department or division that is, and let’s help
solve the problem. But instead, you know as Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho points
out, the same letter was sent for eight (8) consecutive months, and the only thing
that changed was the month of the report, and twice (2) to change the effective date
of when the problem was hopefully going to be finished. And I think what prompted
her to get the update was the fact that the October report said it would be done in
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September. So they didn’t even pay attention in redrafting the letter to get the
dates right, (inaudible) right, and you know as the Council, it’s rather insulting that
you know you’re getting responses to questions and you cannot even figure out the
right date to put on the letter that you sent for the eighth consecutive month.

Mr. Knutzen: Yea, that would be better responded to by Donald I think,
or Doug would you like to respond?

Mr. Haigh: Yea, I take full responsibility for the letter, and take full
responsibility for not paying close enough attention to make sure that I was
updating that letter appropriately each month. The Building Division was working
hard trying to find out what was going wrong. I was personally reviewing the data
each month to see if we had good data, and at that time talked to my staff, said
what’s going on? We can’t release this data because it doesn’t make any sense. My
staff would follow up with IT to try to find out what was going on. In March we
were you know updating, inputting procedures. We thought the problem was that
people weren’t adequately trained and weren’t following our procedures, and it
really wasn’t until January that we discovered that those procedures weren’t going
to give us the results we were looking for, so that was a problem. During this period
we are trying different things to correct the problem, and sometimes our corrections
actually didn’t...well none of the corrections fixed the problem and some of them
actually exasperated the problem. So we were attempting, we were working with IT
to correct it, we were sending communications out to the other agencies asking
them to be...paying more attention to the inputting data telling them that we were
going to make changes to assure we had more accurate data, so there were things
going on during that time.

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Okay.

Mr. Haigh: But I do take responsibility for not playing closer
attention and giving you a better letter during those periods.

Chair Asing: Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho?

Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Well then I would like to see those letters, all the letters
that went out to all the departments. I think the last time that we had spoken, we
were going to get every person that was cced on the letter to be here to explain what
was the issue in them complying with something...for me it seemed relatively
simple. If you could do it in a month, I don’t know why it took that long, but I would
ask...we’ll be sending over a communication that every communication that went
out to every department...because it’s a problem I think that is pervasive with the
agencies if they failed to not comply for a period of eight (8) months. And it’s only
after out of desperation that the Council comes forward and says well you know this
is unacceptable work. So you know Council Chair, I think that’s something after
having followed this issue for the last...well it’s now...from back in March, it’s
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almost a year that we are at least entitled to that kind of information, really to see
where are the issues. Because it’s not only in this area that we see this kind of
work, it actually is in other areas as well. It just seems to be something that
consistently happens and so to have a better take on the issue, if we could send over
a communication on all the letters that went out trying to get the other agencies to
comply I'll be satisfied with that, and I don’t have any further questions, thank you.

Chair Asing: Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes, I want to say that it seems like there’s been
tremendous progress in the last two (2) months. Looks like you’re getting to the
core of the problem, and that you’re underway now to actually solving the problem.
And so did I hear correctly that you expect the basic report to be accurate by March
or April?

Mr. Knutzen: Well we...we started this standardization for the data
from February, and the report comes out by mid-March, that’s the first report. We
know that won’t be perfect, and I don’t want to build up expectations that it will be
perfect. It will be very...much more accurate.

Ms. Yukimura: Um hum.

Mr. Knutzen: We've identified certain issues where at least one (1) of
the agencies is still going back to the old way of inputting, so we’re making
corrections. Fortunately, we have three (3) of us practically going out during these
weeks to go out, check the data, train on site, continue, so I can’t give you an
expectation that it’ll be perfect until several months down the road, the first of
which, April, based on the March data will be more accurate than (inaudible)
March.

Ms. Yukimura: But we’ll have a very close approximation?

Mr. Knutzen: It should be very accurate, especially compared to what
you've been seeing.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay.

Mr. Knutzen: I would like to say it was perfect, but I can’t, it’s not
possible for me to say...

Ms. Yukimura: Yea, okay, so I mean the...hopefully the information will
be accurate and you're going to have some refinements to make it totally accurate.

Mr. Knutzen: Correct.
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Ms. Yukimura: Okay, um and because this is an interdepartmental effort,
I trust that the Mayor has given direction to the Department Heads also to support
this process and that the Department Heads are supporting it in terms of their
instructions to their employees?

Mr. Knutzen: They are very supportive.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so you have like a unified effort going on here?

Mr. Knutzen: We do, we do.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, and I...

Mr. Knutzen: Reflected by the participation of 32 of 33 attended the
training.
Ms. Yukimura: That is impressive, and you’re getting the 33 person as

well over time?
Mr. Knutzen: Um hum.

Mr. Haigh: Just a comment on that issue. One (1) of the key
members of my staff is spending a lot of time on working with all the agencies, and
she’s been getting very good support from all the user agencies. I've had very little
comments that she’s having difficulties with the cooperating, so it really appears
that we're getting full cooperation with all the users of the program, and everybody
has put importance to us, and everybody is trying their best to do it right.

Ms. Yukimura: Okay, so you actually have an interdepartmental team
effort going on sounds like?

Mr. Haigh: Correct.

Ms. Yukimura: Well good, I mean that could turn out to be a really
wonderful model, so thank you very much for your work. I think...I mean it’s clear
that it’s a really important thing to the Council, and I do share the belief of my
fellow Councilmembers that that data could be useful in many different ways,
so...not just for Council purposes, but for actually improving the permitting system
and being really useful as we look at streamlining the permit process. Okay, so
thank you.

Chair Asing: With that, Councilmember Bynum?

Mr. Bynum: This is used and discussed here for several hours now,
and I think you know people are looking at trying to find out what lessons are




COUNCIL MEETING 12 FEBRUARY 14, 2007

learned from the process. And of course the frustrating thing I think was that
efforts were being made over a number of months and they weren’t being successful,
and the letters that were coming here, you know came from one (1) division, but
were cced to...by my count seven (7) different divisions that have to contribute to
this report, some of which are not even in the County right? One of which at least...

And so you know I think what I'm hearing is efforts are being made
unsuccessfully and so the issue is about communication. Also a need for expertise,
that you need to come in and somebody who could look at the bigger picture, which I
think IT is doing real concertedly, but it’s also an issue of leadership that you know
at some point, this needs to kick up another level. These letters came from the
Building Division, but they were signed four (4) levels up from that, and at some
point, and it took that kind of intervention to say hey, this one (1) division that’s
submitting this letter can’t fix this problem. And so there...and so the last issue to
me 1s empowerment, to empower the workers at this higher level to make sure
there was communication, because four (4) levels up were signing the letter and
seven (7) different department heads were getting copied the letter. And so I'm
confident that we've learned lessons in that I understand what went wrong, and
that now things are being done to improve that and look forward to having this
communication in for the February, and then March report. But I wanted to take
even one (1) step back, is that accurate, the way I laid that out Erik in your mind?

Mr. Knutzen: Yes, um hum.

Mr. Bynum: Because at some point at the one (1) division level, you
know and Donald pointed this out last time we talked about it, that it’s hard for one
(1) division to tell the other division what to do. So that’s got to come up from the
top, that’s got to come from the top that says hey, this isn’t working, we got to get
this team together. But this started to go wrong, because we were trying to collect
more data or different data, because you’ve had reports like this. How is this report
different than what happened previous to this getting messed up?

Mr. Knutzen: Ho, I think the biggest difference is that we...no one had a
consorted focused effort to do this. We had I think a lot of focus among the agencies
on a lot of other items, and now we collectively, responsibly took a look at it
together, and had the support of all the directors to do that.

Mr. Bynum: Yea, I understand that, but prior to eight (8) months ago,
the Council was a receiver, the reports were coming out, and something went
wrong. Is it because we were collecting new data? We're trying to do a different
report and get more information?

Mr. Knutzen: I think with the limited authority that Doug had...

Mr. Haigh: Let me, let me just answer that.
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Mr. Knutzen: Go ahead, please.

Mr. Haigh: We had a software upgrade, and with the software
upgrade it kind of changed how we were doing things, and then we had a training
program, where we trained everybody that were on the software upgrade. And as 1
mentioned at that point, we made a fundamental error in telling people what
commands to use, and it...you know and so that was...we didn’t discover that until
January.

Mr. Bynum: I guess for the people out there that might be watching
this, I want them to have a clear understanding of what this data is and how it’s
used. Because the Council Chair said last time we talked about this that his fear is
that this data would...it’s just a report to the Council, and if it’s just a report to the
Council, you know what good does that do? And so as I understand this report,
when I looked at it, when a building permit comes in it has to go through seven (7)
different review divisions or agencies, including one (1) is the Health Department,
which is a state agency. And so when you...contractors are up there, somebody
trying to build a home and contractors have to schedule things knowing...having
some idea of how long this process is going to take is beneficial to them, beneficial to
the public, and beneficial to the contractor. And then knowing how each
division...how much time (inaudible) will allow us to tighten that up, and perhaps
provide better service to the community. I mean that’s the purpose of these reports
right? Or one (1) of the purposes is to make the system work more efficiently, and
to clearly recognize where the problems are. One (1) of the things in here is called
an owner’s delay, right? Maybe the process is delayed because the owner makes
revisions or pulls things back, and so knowing where time is being spent, will allow
the County to know where maybe more resources should go to improve the time.
And these are critical issues because as we’re looking at our housing bill, we’re
contemplating giving expedited permits to people who are building affordable
housing you know, and knowing how that would impact the system in the future
may be really important. And so I'm afraid if you’re out there in the public, and
you’re hearing about all these...oh what does it do, what good does it do? And so
you know when this data is collected properly, it gives us lots of information about
our system and about where improvements could happen or where problems are.
Am I accurately describing them?

Mr. Knutzen: Yes.

Mr. Bynum: So, but the lesson I learned here is that at some point
when something is not working, and it’s an interdepartmental thing, the leadership
has to come from a higher level to say hey, we got to cut through this and empower
somebody to fix it. That happened apparently in' December when IT was given the
lead, and now it continues to happen by saying there’s a team member at the
Building Division who is interacting with all of the other seven (7) agencies, and in
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essence that person empowered to say...because their bosses are saying hey, you got
to cooperate with this to make this work. Right? And that’s what is happening
now, and that’s the big difference, so thank you very much for your effort. And you
know I look forward to seeing really good data here, because it’s important for
what’s coming up and changes we’re contemplating, and then just serving the
community better, because you know I'm talking to contractors, they have to
schedule their time.

Chair Asing: Tim, Tim? You want to finish up? You want to finish up?
Mr. Bynum: Yea, I'm done.

. Chair Asing: You're done? Okay, Councilmember Furfaro?
Mr. Furfaro: Thank you Mr. Chair. I'm going to make this...just some

answers to the question. The focus on getting this report done was based on the fact
that I thought we had a great opportunity here to forecast future County revenues
for the purpose of taxes. Would you agree with that...

Mr. Knutzen: I agree.

Mr. Furfaro: Okay, that opportunity provides itself if we know what
our future value of our new real estate is, we can subject ourselves to some index
that would forecast some growth and revenue, that’s number one (1). We had the
software upgrade and I concur, but I would like to say that for me in the future, as I
approve money for software upgrades and so forth, I think you would agree Erik,
that we need to also allocate some resources for the training on the new upgraded
system, and I think it actually should be part of the project. The fact that we have
many divisions that are involved in this is part of your plan as you are
standardizing this input, are you planning to have a lead kind of person in each of
these areas Erik, so that when a new person comes on, what’s the next step here
with the ongoing standardization?

Mr. Knutzen: We have...to answer your question, yes, in each of the
agencies we've got a so called super user or primary user. We also have a secondary
user identified when that person is sick or out, in some cases a tertiary or third
level or person that’s involved. Then we have a coordinator we've identified that
happens to be within Doug’s area...

Mr. Furfaro: Okay.

Mr. Knutzen: Who is the coordinator that is the hotline. If you have an
issue...if 'm in an agency, I'm at Department of Health, and I don’t know how to
input this, or I've got a challenge, you know whatever it may be regarding inputting
data on permits, they can call this coordinator and get help immediately, so we've
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got communication channels set up and people identified, and then ongoing training
for new people joining the system, so that they will be trained by this coordinator.

Mr. Furfaro: I appreciate that as being part of your plan, and I think
you agree with me that the single most important thing that we can do with our
staff, and our employees in the County is make sure that they have significant
training and the right tools to do the job.

Mr. Knutzen: Agreed.

Mr. Furfaro: Thank you. Thank you Mr. Chair.

Chair Asing: ~ Councilmember Rvapozo?

Mr. Rapozo: Thank you. Erik, you mentioned earlier that it will be a

while before you can assure us the accuracy of these reports, and I just want to
know why.

Mr. Knutzen: Well, we’re dealing with 33 different individuals...

Mr. Rapozo: Okay.

Mr. Knutzen: Of which all have been trained now.

Mr. Rapozo: Right.

Mr. Knutzen: And dealing with that big of a group that hasn’t...many of

them have not inputted in this manner, even though we've got good, solid training,
we're using best practices in training, even ongoing roaming support as we’re called,
we'd go out to the different agencies and we ask them, hey what’s happening, or
let’s look at the data you've input. Oh, this looks incorrect, you’ve got to do it this
way.

Mr. Rapozo: I understand that Erik, but I guess my question to you is,
is an inaccurate report acceptable to you?

Mr. Knutzen: No.

Mr. Rapozo: Okay, that is my point. I cannot accept the fact that after

a year...okay, after a year, and it was only after a very embarrassing TV show on
Ho‘ike, channel 53, it was only after that, that all of a sudden this became a
priority. Eight (8) months of inaccurate reports, in fact it just...not...reports that
were not even usable, and I read this letter here that it’s assuring us again that the
corrections to assure accurate inputting will be completed by January 29, and
corrections to assure accurate reporting will be completed by February 15, which is
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tomorrow. And today I hear you tell me, I cannot tell you when, I mean it may be
months from now, and that to me Erik, and I speak for myself is not acceptable. We
have funded HTE, we have funded IT money over, and over, and over again.
Councilmember Furfaro is right, I mean obviously if we’re going to fund the money,
you would hope that the training would come with it. My whole concern is, and
maybe some of you folks should go to a football clinic, a coaching clinic, because if
you have a person that cannot block, you taught him, you gave him the best practice
training, and he just cannot block, then you replace him. I cannot sit here and say
okay, no take your time, because the data is not really important to us, I mean
we've waited a year, what’s another three (3), or four (4), or five (5) months? Lord
have mercy. You trained them, if they cannot do the job, then they need to be
replaced. I mean how...I cannot sit here and accept the fact that we’re going to be
okay with inaccurate reports for the next couple of months. We've had a year.
We've had a year Erik, whether or not you’ve been involved here or not, we've had a
year of unacceptable practices, and I am not going to sit here and say keep sending
your inaccurate reports until youre ready. Until your employees decide that it’s
time to accurately input the data, I don’t view this as a complex issue. You know in
the Police Department, the manual, we had to keep track when the case came in,
when we started the case, how much hours we spent on the case, what the
resolution, and those things were done, somebody monitored that, and you
couldn’t...well I don’t feel like inputting this month, or maybe I spent too long on
this case, so I don’t want to put that entire time because it will make me look bad.
You can’t do that. You replace them, you discipline them, you suspend them, you do
what you got to do. This Council is entitled to this report.

Mr. Knutzen: Hum.

Mr. Rapozo: I think Councilmember Kouchi mentioned the word
insult, this is a big insult, huge insult to me to sit here and say hey, we’re not
asking for much. We're asking for accurate reports, and every month we get the
excuses and...we went from software, I mean we are talking about going after a
software manufacturer for a refund, and it’s not the case. The case is simply we
have employees that either are not trained or choose not to input the data that they
are supposed to be inputting. And if that is the case, that’s alarming, and I think
that needs to be addressed. The bottomline is Erik, I don’t think that this Council
deserves anything less than an accurate report.

Ms. Yukimura: Mr. Chair?

Chair Asing: Okay, are you through?
Mr. Rapozo: Well, I guess so. Go ahead.
Chair Asing: Thank you. With that, let me just say again, I prefaced

this in the beginning, and I told the Council this, that I put this on the agenda
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because it is a report from the department on what they've done, what their plans
are, so that we can move forward. There have been some errors made, there have
been some things that were done that maybe shouldn’t have been done, but they
have taken corrective measures, and are on their way to giving us good reports, and
I want to make that plain. That’s the reason I put this on the agenda. I could have
not put this on the agenda, and held it back until the February or the March report
come out, but I chose to put it on the agenda because I wanted to give the
department an opportunity to explain what they are doing going forward. Things
that have been done in the past, we discussed it at length, they were unacceptable
to this Council. We said it, we meant it, and we expect good information and I
believe you’re on your way to providing that information to us. So Councilmembers,
you know I want you to understand my reason for my putting this item on the
agenda. It was for that purpose, but I understand the frustrations of the
Councilmembers. With that...

Mr. Rapozo: Can I just add real quick?
Chair Asing: Sure.
Mr. Rapozo: And the only reason I brought that up is because of the

letter that we have that was dated on January 26, and it’s quite clear again that the
promise was that we were going to have accurate reporting by tomorrow. And I'm
hearing today that there is no date, and I understand what you are saying
Mr. Chair and I appreciate that, but the fact remains, don’t keep telling us...give us
a date that is not true. Just if it’s...if you don’t know...

Chair Asing: Okay, let me...maybe I see and I read things a little
different. 1 believe what Erik is trying to convey to the Council is that they are
trying their best to give the Council accurate information, and I don’t think he
wants to put himself into a position that there was one (1) or two (2) small minor
errors and that’s not perfect. So he cannot guarantee everything will be perfect, but
they are on their way to doing a better job. And I think...so when I look at that, my
feel is that Erik doesn’t want to put himself into a position where, oh, you got one
(1) error in here, so that’s not good enough.

Mr. Kouchi: But that would appear to be a truthful answer from Erik,
and I think Mr. Rapozo’s only point is that the letter signed here...you know if it
had said that as well, it would be consistent, but you have two (2) people sitting
next to each other who have said something differently, that’s all.

Chair Asing: Okay, with that Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Mr. Chair, I...when I listen to the overall message coming
from the Administration, what I'm hearing is that accurate, very accurate reports
are the goal of the Administration’s effort at this point. And that it’s been a moving
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target of sorts. I don’t know if...I'm sure those of us around the table have had
pretty complex problems that take a while to unravel and...

(Change to side B of tape 1)

Ms. Yukimura: ...a lot of attention or effort was being made, although I
think there was some. But I believe the message from the Council at our...the
meeting that was referred to by Councilmember Rapozo was a clear message to the
Administration about the Council’s desire for accurate reports and the offense that
the Council has felt by the Administration from the lack of attention. And I think
the response since then has been one (1) of putting it high priority and making
great gains in solving the problem. And what I'm hearing also is that there is a real
team effort by everyone involved in this project to do a good job, so I hope that we
adhere to that and encourage actions that are in the right direction. I think that’s
really important when there’s an effort that’s being put forth that we support and
encourage it, especially if it’s you know...it’s a turnaround from the past, and it’s
going in the direction that we all want. And so I think we need to thank and
encourage those employees that are making the changes. We all have habits that
are hard to break, you know I still see containers in our wastebasket that aren’t
being recycled and lights and electricity that we don’t always turn off. I mean it’s
hard habits to break, so I hope we can respect the good work that’s being made.

Chair Asing: Okay, what I'd like to do first is, are there any other
questions for both Erik or Doug? Councilmembers, are there questions for Erik or
Doug? You have? Go ahead Tim. '

Mr. Bynum: I just want to be clear. The data that’s being inputted in
the month of February is being inputted correctly?

Mr. Knutzen: Yes.

Mr. Bynum: Okay, so the February report is likely to be pretty
accurate?

Mr. Knutzen: Um hum. I have data here that shows that one (1) of our

agencies did not input correctly, and that’s being addressed with that person.

Mr. Bynum: So as you've done the training, and now the data is being
corrected, you're going back and looking and making sure that it’s being accurate.

Mr. Knutzen: Yes.

Mr. Bynum: So the Februrary...we're going to receive a report in
March for February...
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Mr. Knutzen: Yes.

Mr. Bynum: That will be highly accurate?

Mr. Knutzen: .Yes.

Mr. Bynum: (Inaudible) not perfect, but highly accurate.

Mr. Knutzen: Yes.

Mr. Bynum: And as you go into the data for March, the report will be

even better is what I hear you saying.

Mr. Knutzen: Correct. If we take an analogy that Councilman Rapozo
used of a coach of a team. We've 33 members of the team, we've all played a lot of
sports, many of us have played collect...like football. And what you have is you've
got a team that was not working together and was not consistently applying
themselves in the same manner to reach that...do that touchdown. So we’ve gone
in, we've done our training intensively. It’s almost like putting together an Olympic
team for the United States team where they are coming from different areas. These
are all different agencies, all the different types of disciplines, you bring them
together and we cannot expect all touchdowns, perfect plays. We will in fact, if
there are individuals one (1) or two (2) that just aren’t getting it, of course we’ll
inform the agency heads and say hey, we need some help here, and we will raise the
red flag and that’s our job. If we brought in 33 individuals globally that were the
best data registrars in the world, I still couldn’t guarantee you 100%, because they
are human. But I can guarantee you that with the resources I have...we have, and
had, and with the support that I'm getting very good from the administrative
directors, that this is a good effort, the best we can do.

Mr. Bynum: I just wanted to clarify, because I don’t see what you're
saying being inconsistent with this letter at all. It says that we’ll have an accurate
report on February data, and so I don’t see the inconsistency. It says based on these
actions, we’re confident we’ll have an accurate report for the reporting period of
February 2007 and beyond. Is that accurate?

Mr. Knutzen: Correct.
Mr. Bynum: Okay, so I don’t...okay, thank you.
Chair Asing: Okay, any more questions for Erik or Doug? If hot, thank

you Doug and Erik. You have?

Mr. Kouchi: No, no.
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Chair Asing: No? Then that’s all for you. Thank you very much. I'm
going to call the meeting back to order unless there is anyone else in the audience
who wants to speak on this item. There being none, we’ll call the meeting back to
order, thank you Erik and Doug.

The meeting was called back to order and proceeded as follows:

Chair Asing: With that, is there any further discussion
Councilmembers? Councilmember Kouchi?

Mr. Kouchi: I wanted to mention to Erik. I remembered what I said
back in December and much like Councilmember Yukimura, we did talk about the
fact that it won’t be easy. We're going to be asking employees to do something new
and we talked about a three (3) month period to get to the perfecting of the reports,
and you know I was supportive of that. I continue to be supportive of that because I
understand that you know human error occurs, and part of supporting that in the
December discussion, it was a possible concern was that data was intentionally
being misrepresented to make departments look better. And I thought it was
important to have so called amnesty period to get everything up and square that we
would be clear on what was required of each and every employee, but after the three
month period ended, should there be data entries of a suspicious nature, then there
wouldn’t be any question about the disciplinary action. Certainly there are certain
actions that would have said, oh I just mistakenly hit that key. And I think the
message we were trying to give was that same discussion of if it’s taking your
department longer than we may have a problem in personnel shortage. We may
have a problem in insufficient equipment, but it’s not that your department isn’t
doing their job, they are working as hard as they can, but you can only process so
many permits. But the report should show that and should help us run each
department better, and so you know I still stand by what I said you know back in
December and I hope that the first one (1) will be right. But the part that I cannot
agree with is that it’s impossible for somebody above in the chain of command to
empower somebody to do a job if they aren’t identifying the problem. And so taking
the Chairman’s advice, I'm not going to go back and rehash the inaccuracies of the
report. The only message I want to leave with Doug is if it’s not working, tell us
why it’s not working, and hopefully you would see that...because you were here in
December when Erik and Donald were describing what we needed to do. We gave
the full support to try to go after it and get it done right, and nobody was sitting
here yelling at anybody because they told us that we couldn’t do it the way we
thought we could. If it’s not working, the other seven (7) agencies need to know. If
it’s not working, the guys that are signing the letter need to know, but if you don’t
write a different letter to identify the problem and bring it to people’s attention you
can’t be empowered. And I would certainly hope by being honest, that Doug
wouldn’t be punished because he should be writing about these kinds of problems,
because he wants to be able to get the job done. And I would hope that the guys in
his department above him would then give that kind of support, but I mean they
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can only help you if you tell them what the problem is, and you know I hope that
that is what we have learned more than anything from today is that you know we
all want to do our jobs better, so you need to help identify problems so we can fix
what the real problem is.

Chair Asing: Thank you.

Mr. Kouchi: Otherwise Erik, to me you did everything you said you'd
do and you gave us as much information as you had within that timeframe, and I
appreciate that you know effort that went in.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Councilmember Furfaro?

Mr. Furfaro: Yes, Mr. Chair. First of all, thanks for putting this on the
agenda for an update. I'm pleased with the progress that is being made. I want to
compliment the gentlemen. Clearly one (1) of the things we saw here today is you
know our investing in our people is extremely important. We have to make sure
that we train people appropriately whenever there is an introduction of new
software or upgrades, and this term being used, this standardization input
procedure is something we might want to trigger with every future project where we
do an upgrade. I think you know we make these financial investments in getting
better information out there, but along this line, when you also spend some money
on nonproductive time for the training, and that should be reflected in the future in
project releases for upgrades. I also think what we...I've seen today is when we
work collaboratively on problems, different divisions come forward with different
concepts of what the issues are, and that they can all be researched. So you know,
I'm quite pleased with the progress we’re making and I think this report in the
future has great potential, so let’s just say we need to continue constantly making
improvements here to get where we want to be. Thank you Mr. Chair.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Anyone else? Further discussion?
Councilmember Yukimura?

Ms. Yukimura: Yes Mr. Chair, I want to thank Doug Haigh and Erik
Knutzen, and all the members of the team for hearing the upset of the Council, a
very valid upset, and for jumping to the problem. Looks like the software user
interface is the main problem, and that the wrong commands were used, but the
corrections have been made and are being tested toward the goal of accurate
reports. And I think we all know that the accurate reports are going to be
important in a variety of ways, so I am pleased with the progress as well, and I look
forward to the day when we can get accurate reports.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further discussion Councilmembers?
Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho.
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Ms. Iseri-Carvalho:Yes, I guess Council Chair, what really bothers me today
is the fact that we have been given three (3) explanations at various times as to
what the errors were. We were first told that there was a softball...software bug
and that was an issue. We were then led to believe that in fact the data was being
manipulated, that there was actually an intentional manipulation of the data that
was being inputted. And today were hearing that it was because of wrong
commands. I think that’s the frustration that Councilmember Rapozo is sensing,
not that...you know we have...of course as Councilmember Yukimura has brought
up, everyone on this table appreciates the efforts that have gone into correcting that
problem, that’s not an issue. I think the issue is that it’s time and time again when
we're being lied to, or were not given the truth in the information. So over a period
of you know eight (8) to ten (10) months, we were led to believe various things, and
you know what’s so hard about telling the truth when you come up and sit on that
chair? I think that is the problem. And we have letters that support that they have
provided three (3) different answers as to what the problems were. We also have
verbatim minutes that have been reviewed, that list the three (3) different
responses that have been provided. So that is the problem, it’s about being honest.
We cannot move forward without people not realizing that when they are sitting on
that chair, it’s the (inaudible) simple to be honest, and you know that to me is what
really bothers me the most. And so hopefully that message is sent. You know it
wasn’t a matter of priority or whether the Administration...I think everybody
should have a priority of being honest, and you know that’s the frustration.

Also you know I think there has been some statement made by people here
that says well this was requested by the Council. It was requested by the Council,
but, because the people wanted the information, because we knew that there were a
lot of issues that were occurring when people went out. When the average person
went out to get their building permits, and the time that it took at various
departments, we wanted to know where was the bottleneck, because we had an
obligation to inform those homeowners who desperately wanted to get into their
homes why they weren’t able to get their permits, and why they weren’t able to get
permits in a timely manner, and where was the holdup when other people were
getting their permits within a relatively short amount of time and there were others
that weren’t. And so it appeared to be that there was some other issues that were
going on, and this was a way to track it and to try to explain to the public as to why
they weren’t getting their permits. So there’s a larger, bigger issue here, and
hopefully that comes to light. And what I'm saying is that it continues to come on
every...it’s not only this issue, but a lot of other issues, and hopefully, again, there
will be a message that says you know please be honest from the very upfront, and
tell us what the truth is. If there are issues that we could have started working on
them from the very beginning as opposed to being led to believe three (3) different
things over a period of eight (8) months, and now it’s almost a year. So that’s really
the issues that I have with the statements that were made. And if people want to
review those minutes, by all means, we have them available. If they want to review
all of the letters that came in from the various agencies, we have that as well.
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Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further discussion? Councilmember
Yukimura?
Ms. Yukimura: Yes, I just want to say that I think sometimes in solving

problems you don’t always know what the actual problem is, and you might have a
beginning hypothesis about a certain thing, until you check it out and then you find
out that it was another thing. So, I guess I didn’t see it as an issue of lying and
maybe that’s just my perspective, and I also to a certain extent, I don’t care what
the causes of the problem are, as long as they get solved. I don’t think it’s our job to
solve the problem. It’s our job to demand and get accurate reports. How you get us
to there is your problem Administration, but when you don’t get us there, we are
entitled to ask questions about why you didn’t get us there, and why the results are
inconsistent. You know so...I mean I guess that’s a thing too, that if you don’t want
us to ask a lot of questions, give us accurate reports. But I mean the problem
solving process is not a very neat one (1), it’s sometimes pretty messy, and then it’s
hard for us to solve the problem from this table, because we aren’t...we don’t have
actually even the authority to deal with the day to day stuff that goes on. So I just
wanted to share that perspective.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further discussion? Councilmember
Rapozo?
Mr. Rapozo: I just want to respond to Councilmember Yukimura,

because I think...maybe my expectations is too high for government work, maybe.
Because I think everything you said is true, if this problem was a problem that had
been going on for a month, or maybe two (2) months. But when this problem has
been going on for a year now, approaching a year, that is a serious concern. And the
fact that the information we had been provided was not accurate, that (inaudible) as
well as Councilmember Iseri-Carvalho said bothers me as well. You know we all go
to...we all went to school, I'm still going to college, and I do my courses online, and
if my computer goes down, I still got to do my work somehow. I got to go find me a
computer, I got to fix my computer, I got to do something to get it done. In the
military it’s no different. If there is a report to be completed, it needs to be done. If
there’s a problem with the software, do you fix the software? If there’s a problem
with input, then you fix the input, but you don’t wait a year. I mean, so I'm not
going to go back to my earlier comments, but I will just close by saying there’s
something my Dad taught me a long time ago. He said you know you fool me once,
shame on you, you fool me twice shame on me, and today I feel shame. Thank you.

Chair Asing: Thank you. Any further discussion? If not, what I'd like
to do is close and thank you Erik and Doug for your work. Hopefully you get the job
done in a timely manner. I want to though explain just a little bit to Erik and Doug
that this report originated many, many years ago for one (1) sole purpose. What
was happening in the community...the contractors, homeowners got very upset
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because they were not receiving their building permits in a timely manner. Some
took eight (8) months, some took four (4) months, some took one (1) month, some
took 10 months to get a building permit. And they were frustrated, they were
upset, and this Council initiated this move to get the permit system done so that it
is timely. The Contractor’s Association got involved, the realtors got involved
because what was happening was that I believe during Iniki, .some of the electrical
permits were not being signed off, therefore the real estate people got involved
because there was not closure in signing off and they could not purchase the houses
and sell them because the permits were not in order. So there was lots of problems
and so we initiated that for that purpose, to look at how long you're taking, and if
you're taking too long we would look at the reports and say wow, you’re taking too
much time here, what is the problem?

So, and then on top of that Councilmember Furfaro brings up another area
that this report can be used for, and that is the financial reporting forecasting that
would be a benefit to the County, to especially the Finance Director. I too know
possibly the kinds of resources, financial help we can get out there. So with that,
thank you very much. I'd like to have a motion to receive this item.

Mr. Furfaro moved to receive C 2007-113 for the record, seconded by
Ms. Yukimura and unanimously carried.

Mr. Nakamura:  Council Chair, at this time there’s a request to go to page
four (4) of the Council’s agenda to take up item C 2007-103.

There being no objections C 2007-103, C 2007-104, C 2007-105, and C 2007-106
were taken out of order.

C 2007-103 Communication (02/02/2007) from the Prosecuting Attorney,
requesting Council approval to receive and expend $1,700 of state asset forfeiture
funds from the State of Hawai‘i Department of the Attorney General to procure one
(1) projector: Mr. Rapozo moved to approve C 2007-103, seconded by
Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.

C 2007-104 Communication (02/02/2007) from the Prosecuting Attorney,
requesting Council approval to receive and expend additional federal funds in the
amount of $22,350.00 for the Kauai VOCA (Victims of Crime Act) Expansion
Project, which commenced on October 1, 2005 and will expire on September 30,
2007. The additional funding will be expended on salaries for the Office of the
Prosecuting Attorney, Victim/Witness Program and to extend the consultant
contracts with the YWCA of Kaua‘i: Mr. Furfaro moved to approve C 2007-104,
_seconded by Ms. Iseri-Carvalho and unanimously carried.

C 2007-105 Communication (02/02/2007) from the Prosecuting Attorney,
requesting Council approval to apply for, receive, and expend $1